






























































































































































































































CLOWES OVERFLOW DAM 

1870 - Repairs to top of dam with coarse gravel and putting in 
several new stones knocked out by ice. 

1876 - Gravel placed on dam. 

1881 - 100 yds of gravel placed on dam. 

1888 - Repairs to stone dam. 

1889 - 60 loads of broken stone. 

1894 - 100 yds of stone. 

1895 - Leaks in dam stopped by dredge. 

1905 - 40 feet of dam rebuilt, other portions of it were repaired. 

1909 - Some stones carried away by ice and were put back into place. 

1911 - Stone and gravel placed on dam. 

1914 - After 80 years the center of the dam had been pushed 
downstream, thus destroying the keywork . About 160 feet of 
the dam was taken down and relaid in cement to its original 
radius. 

1954 - Portion of the stone arch dam was grouted and a concrete cap 
put in its place. 

1975/ 76 - Reinforced concrete wall was placed against the upstream face 
of the dam. 

Existing masonry pressure grouted. 

Missing stones from the face of the dam were replaced. 



KINGSTON MILLS ARCH DAM 

1862 - Stone retaining dam is bulged outward. 500 yards of coarse 
gravel placed in front . 

1870 - Face of the dam repaired . 

1948 - Concrete top place on top of the dam. 

1976 - Rock berm fill placed against downstream face to prevent 

Site Notes 

collapse . Future repairs planned - remove concrete cap, 
rebuild deteriorated portion of the stone facing above the 
rock berm, grout and grade. 

- Concrete top on dam has cracked. Dam is bulged outward . 
- Face of dam is hidden by basins created by the Gananoque Light and 

Power dam i1T1T1ediately downstream. 
- Only a few feet of the dam is visible above the waterline. 



EDMUNDS WASTE WEIR 

1865 - Waste weir failed - masonry and the apron had both given way. 
- A wooden bulkhead was constructed inside the masonry in order 

to provide support. 

1871 New sill laid in foundation of waste weir , and additional 
repairs made. 

1902 - Waste weir repaired and repl anked . 

1907 - Waste weir taken down and rebuilt. 

1910 - Waste weir recovered and planked. 

1929 - New floor was laid in the waste weir. 

1979 - Foundations of downstream (south) east and west abutments 
were excavated. Concrete was pou red around the base of each 
abutment to staunch leakage. 

- Backfill behind upstream walls of weir were excavated and a 
concrete wall (6" wide x 3~ ' deep) was poured along the 
backside of the walls . New impervious clay backfill was 
added . 

- Sheet piling placed from upper west weir wall, extending west 
to the river bank, and also from the upper east weir wall to 
the overflow dam. 

- selected deteriorated stones in weir were chipped back and 
patched with concrete. 

- Weir was pressure grouted . 
- Steel stop log checks installed. 
- Work done by La Flamme Construction. 

Site Notes 

- stone masonry 
- wood deck 
- steel stop log checks 
- concrete wall along east 

upstream face 



KINGSTON MILLS WASTE WEIR 

1865 - Bulkhead renewed. 

1884 - Waste weir was renewed. 

1898 - Waste weir across embankment rebui l t . 

1902 - Stone waste weir was taken down and rebuilt and now nearly 
all the leakage that existed is staunched. 

1985/86 - Upcoming repairs planned: 

s;te Notes 

- replacement of the existing wood sill with concrete; 
- steel stop - log check liners and seating plate of steel to 

be installed to provide uniform bearing surfaces; 
- grouting and pointing stone masonry abutments; 
- grout joint between existing steel sheet pile wall and 

back of east abutment. 

- weir is all masonry 
- concrete bulkhead over weir 



CLOWES WASTE WEIR 

1885/86 - Repairs to bywash. 

1902 - The entire central pier of the weir was carried off during 
spring run-off . The two narrow stop log bays were replaced 
with a single set of oak stoplogs 33 feet in length. 

The whole of the weir and the embankment were rebuilt. 

The wing wall of the bulkhead was also taken down to the low 
water mark and rebuilt. 

1907 - The waste weir was taken down and rebuilt with new stone. 

1918 - Apron below the weir was worked out and rebuilt. 

1927 - Floor of weir was planked. 

1929 - Floor of weir was planked. 

1930 - Bulkhead of weir renewed - stringers, flooring, railing and 
wind bearers. 

1985/86 - Renovations planned: 
- tuckpointing of weir walls, pressure grouting of weir, sill 

and apron ; 
- replace existing concrete sill and apron in concrete; 
- new stop log gain and sill beam 
- replace deteriorated masonry with new masonry; 
- replace deteriorated cement patches with new cement; 
- repairs to rip rap ; 
- reconstruct cut off masonry wall between weir and dam; and 
- install drain pipes on each side of weir. 

Si te Notes 

- all stone masonry 
- steel stop log checks 
- wooden bulkhead over weir 
- both weir walls are patched with random sandstone blocks 



UPPER BREWERS WASTE WEIR 

1894 - Stone weir sheeted inside. 

1880/81 - Bulkhead of weir renewed. 

1897/98 - Bulkhead of weir renewed . 

1910/11 - Waste weir taken down and rebuilt with heavy cut stone. The 
stoplog opening was increased in width by about 3 feet 6 
inches. 

- It was necessary to cut into the retaining dam itself to 
increase the opening. 

- Prior to this, in seasons of heavy snowfall and heavy 
freshets it was necessary for the Brewers Weir and the Morton 
weir to be fully opened. 

1924 - New floor built in waste weir. 

1936/37 - The sill of the weir was lowered four feet to enlarge the 
opening. 

Site Notes 

- metal stop log checks in weir 
- timber deck - new 1984 
- concrete slab abuts lower 

wall of weir 
- all walls of weir are masonry 



NICHOLSONS WASTE WEIR 

- Weir was originally constructed of timber, supported on 
masonry piers. Routine repairs unti l 1899. 

1899 - Waste weir was damaged by spring ice. It was temporarily 
repaired and then rebuilt the following year. 

1910 - Old timber weir deteriorated to the point that it was taken 
down and replacedwith a masonry weir. 

- Some time aft er 1910 - two concrete wal ls were built on the 
down stream sides of the weir . 

1984/ 85 - Weir pressure grouted and pointed . 
- New sill and apron installed . 
- Concrete wing walls downstream refaced. 
- Deteriorated stones in weir replaced. 



JONES FALLS BASIN 

1899 Leakage through the basin stopped with pine sheeting. 

1894 - New sluice pier built in basin. 

1906 - The basin dam which was of timber and clay was taken down and 
a fine stone structure substituted. Most of the stone, with 
the exception of the coping, was taken from the two old lock 
sills which were rebuilt two years ago. An iron sluice of 
the wheel and thread pattern has been put in the dam, and the 
bottom of the opening has been lowered so that the basin can 
be lowered to a point about two feet lower than formerly. 

1980/81 - Stone wall along the north shoreline of the basin was 
reconstructed with a reinforced concrete foundation below 
grade. 2 courses of stone masonry with a coping of 
concrete. 



r-ERRICKVILLE UPPER BASIN 

1830's - Oak planks placed behind walls of the basins to check 
leakage. 

1870, 
1874 Underpinning walls in basin. 

1888 Repairs to masonry in upper and lower basin. 

1891 - North wall of basin taken down and rebuilt, sluice installed 
for dewatering basin . 

1898 - Both basins grouted and pointed. 

1900/ 01 - South wall of upper basin failed in the spring of 1900 and 
was rebuilt by masons. 

1911 - Tile drainage pipes were put in on the south side of the 
basin. 

Site Notes 

- walls appear in good condition 
- rough faced masonry laid in horizontal courses 



MERRICKVILLE LOWER BASIN 

1830 ' s - Oak planks placed behind walls of basins to check leakage. 

1870, 
1874 Underpinning walls in basin. 

1888 - Repairs to masonry in upper and lower basin. 

1898 - Both basins grouted and pointed. 

1903 - South side of lower basin taken down and rebuilt by our 
masons. 

1906 - North wall of lower basin was underpinned and thoroughly 
grouted and pointed . 

1908 - North wall of lower basin was grouted and pointed with 
Portland cement. 

1913 - New concrete wall was built inside the old stone wall forming 
the north side of the lower basin and the coping was moved 
forward to the t op of this new concrete wa l l . Earth was 
placed behind the wall on the north side of the basin to 
strengthen and widen the same. 

1973 - Basi n was pressure grouted in conjunction with repairs to 
locks 21 and 22 . 

Site Notes 

south wall of basin is rough faced masonry 
- north wall of basin i s concrete wi t h stone coping 



BECKWITH STREET SWING BRIDGE 

- Erected in 1888/89. 
- 01 dest steel swi ng bridge on the Rideau/Tay System. 
- Rivetted through king post Howe truss design . 

ca. 1917- Turntable of bridge reconstruct ed or repaired. 

1940 - 3 new fifteen inch floor beams were ordered to replace the 
existing nine inch floor beams supporting the counterweight. 

- 2 new counterweight plates instal led . 

1941 - Swing span section of bridge was wel ded closed . 

1984/85 - Replacement of deteriorated steel members . 
- New t imber deck. 

Sandblasting and painting. 

- Periodic replacement of timber deck at 10 - 20 year i ntervals . 



BURRITTS RAPIDS SWING BRIDGE 

- Erected 1897, through truss design, combining a Pratt and Fink 
truss. 

- Unique design not found on other Canadian Canals. 

1900 - Small repairs. 

1909 - Sundry small repairs. 

1910 - Pointing masonry and piers, new flooring laid on bridge. 

1915 - Bridge sandblasted and painted. 

1925 New joists and flooring laid on swing bridge, circular track 
replaced. 

1934 - New timber floor laid . 

1945 - Floor joists of bridge being replaced. 

1947 - Swing span strengthened by adding heavier stringers . 

1956 - New wooden deck and stringers laid. 

1969 - Bridge damaged by tandem dump trucks crossing over it. 
- Short arm castor support rail was compressed to failure thus 

raising the west side of the bridge some 12 inches from its 
abutment. Severe buckling in 2 compression members in the 
truss on the south side of the bridge, thus several tension 
members deflected. 

- Circular rail was levelled and castors adjusted. 
- Short arm castor support and concrete rail footing replaced. 
- Tension tie rods below the bridge were tightened - steel deck 

beams brought into alignment. 
- decking, flooring, planking and curb rails were replaced. 

1974 - N.W. corner of bridge and fence were damaged by a car. 
- repaired by canal forces. 

1980 - Replacement of 4 I beams on long span section, and 2 I beams 
in each side of the pivoting tower. Diagonals of main towers 
were straightened. Four top chord braces strengthened at end 
of floor beams and tower brace on north side truss. 

1982 - Abutments of Swing Bridge were repointed to the low water 
line. 

1984 - Two separate incidents of vehicles hitti ng the bridge. 
- Emergency repairs carried out - bolting and straightening. 
- Damaged members to be replaced with similar members using 

rivetted connections. 



JONES FALLS FIXED BRIDGE 

- simple timber beam , continuous span structure consisting of timber 
stringers supported on short supplementary beams which rest on rock 
filled timber cribs . 6 spans - total length of bridge is 246 feet. 

- Built 1883 in conjunction with the construction of the swing bridge. 
- Prior te>T930 the piers were rebuil t from low water up on one 

occasion, perhaps in 1913. 

1893 Plan delivered to make repairs to long bridge. 

1897 - Long bridge was rebuilt by our own carpenters. 

1913 - Bridge was rebuilt. 

1935 - Joints and planking of long timber bridge were extensively 
renewed. 

1977 - New stringers and deck built on one span of bridge down to 
wood cribbing . 

1978/79 - New stringers and deck built on remainder of bridge down to 
wood cribbing. 

Since 1935 the superstructure of the bridge has again been renewed. 
- The piers may be original below the water line . 
- The present structure bea rs a close resemblance to the original 

bridge . 



UPPER BREWERS FIXED BRIDGE 

- Simple timber beam structure of a single spa n wi th its floor joists, 
or stringers resting on rock filled timber crib abutments. The 
bridge closely resembles the timber fixed bridge which crossed the 
river in the same location in the year 1830. 

- Substructure of the present bridge was last rebui l t in 1919/20 and 
the superstructure in 1934/35. 

Site Notes 

crib work piers of the bridge are sagging in places 
timber beams have been placeJon the deck resting on the piers of the 
bridge, presumably to take the pressure off the individual deck 
planks. 



"' 

NARROWS SWI NG BRIDGE 

The present Narrows Bridge was originally erected in 1898 at 
Beveridge locks. It was moved to Narrows l ock in 1961, stored there 
and erected in 1965. 

- Rivetted steel modified Pratt through truss. 

1910 - Replanked with 3 inch plank. 

1914 - Swing bridge sandblasted and painted . 

1935 - New floor joists installed and floor planking and guard rails 
renewed . 

1960 Bridge damaged after being hit by a car - $1300 for repairs 5 
web members and one section of the top chord replaced. 
Wooden handrails repaired. 

1981 - Repair work. 
- Replacing 6 badly rusted floor beams, two lattice work 

balance wheel support beams , channel frame gear support, 
gussett plates and various other corroded members. These 
parts were replaced with new galvani zed . 

- Timber deck, deck stringers, hand rails, sub rails and 
bumpers were removed and replaced with new timber. 

- Concrete ballast weight was removed and replaced. 
- Bridge was sandblasted and painted grey. 

Narrows swing bridge and Long Island swing bridge are the only two 
examples on the Rideau Canal of a pony truss swing bridge. 




